ORIGINAL

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

RALPH GROSS,

7

PETITIONER.

LED THO S.D. HALL ^{IG 0}6 **2002** CLERK, SUPREME COUP 02.1695

Case No. :

4th DCA No.: 4D01-2132

.

-VS-

STATE OF FLORIDA, RESPONDENT.

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

Samuel R. Halpern Attorney for Ralph Gross 856 East Oakland Park Blvd. Fort Lauderdale, Fl. 33306 954-630-1400 Florida Bar No. 444316

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

Counsel for Petitioner certifies that the following persons and entities have or may have an interest in the outcome of this case:

Honorable Barry Goldstein Circuit Court Judge, Seventeenth Judicial Circuit (Trial Judge originally assigned to this case)

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Petitioner was the Appellant in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the Defendant in the Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida. Respondent, State of Florida, was the Appellee in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the prosecution in the circuit court.

The Petitioner's appeal of the circuit court's denial of his motion to correct illegal sentence pursuant to F.R.Cr.P. 3.800(a) was unsuccessful. A Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction was timely filed.

The Petitioner, Ralph Gross, shall be referred to as "petitioner." the Respondent shall be referred to as "respondent." References to the Petitioner's Appendix shall be designated by the symbol "A."

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

۰۵

The Petitioner was convicted, among other things, of RICO and Conspiracy to Commit RICO, as well as three other crimes which the information alleged were committed during two separate guideline periods; those in effect in 1993 and those in effect in 1994. The trial court utilized the guidelines in effect in 1993 to score all of his convictions. This was the case for those convictions which took place solely in 1993, 1994, and those which overlapped the two guidelines periods.'

The Petitioner filed a motion to correct illegal sentence pursuant to F.R.Cr.P. 3.800(a). The thrust of Petitioner's motion was that he should have **been** resentenced for those crimes which overlapped two guideline periods. It was argued that the guidelines in effect at the *end* of the criminal episode, rather than at the beginning of the criminal episode should apply.' The 1993 and the 1994 guidelines were silent as to which guidelines should apply when scoring crimes which span two guideline periods. In 1995, the guidelines were amended to add a provision which mandated the use of the guidelines in effect at the beginning of the criminal

^{&#}x27;Respondent conceded that a 1994 guidelines score sheet should have been utilized for those crimes which occurred **solely** in 1994, and a 1993 score sheet for those crimes which occurred solely in 1993.

 $^{^2}$ In this case, the guidelines in effect in 1994 resulted in a significantly lower sentence than those in effect in 1993, when the criminal episode began.

episode in such a situation. Fla. Stat. 921.001 (4)(b)3.

Hearings were held on his motion before the Honorable M. Daniel Futch, Jr., on May 2,2001 and on May 11, 2002. The trial court denied his motion and resentenced Petitioner to forty years in prison. This was the same sentence which he had originally been sentenced to.

Petitioner filed a timely appeal to the Fourth District Court of Appeal. The district court denied Petitioner relief and issued an opinion wherein they expressly disagreed with <u>Hankin v. State</u>, 682 So.2d 602 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1996) which supported Petitioner's contention that the appropriate guidelines to utilized were those in effect at the end of his criminal episode. <u>Gross v. State</u>, — So.2d _____ (Fla. 4th DCA July 10, 2002, Case No. 4D01-2132), attached as exhibit "A". Petitioner filed a timely Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Honorable Court has jurisdiction over this case pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution. This section authorizes the Court to review any decision of a district court which expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court or of the supreme court on the same question of law. See also, Fla. R. App. P.9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). Sub judice, the Fourth District Court of Appeal rendered an opinion which expressly and directly conflicts with another district court and with a decision of the supreme court on the same question of law.

ARGUMENT

Article V, Section 3(b) (3) of the Constitution of the State of Florida empowers this Honorable Court to review any decision **of** a district court which expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of the supreme court on the same question of law. This Court has recently accepted jurisdiction to review such decisions. <u>State v. Betz</u>, 815 So.2d 627 (Fla. 2002)

In the opinion *sub judice*, the district court expressly disagreed with the holding of <u>Hankin v. State</u>, 682 So.2d 602 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1996). <u>Gross v. State</u>, <u>So.2d</u> (Fla. 4th DCA July 10, 2002, Case No. 4D01-2132), attached as exhibit "A". There are no other district court cases which address the issue raised on this appeal and which <u>Hankin</u> had interpreted in the same fashion as Petitioner. Furthermore, this Honorable Court has passed on the

4

same question of law presented in this appeal. <u>Puffinberger v.</u> <u>State</u>, 581 So.2d 897 (Fla. 1991). Indeed, it was on the <u>Puffinberser</u> decision, as interpreted by <u>Hankin</u>, which formed the basis of Petitioner's legal position. The district court recognized that there was an express difference in interpretation and stated:

In <u>Hankin</u>, the Second District Court of Appeal construed <u>Puffinberser</u> to mandate the use of the sentencing guidelines in effect at the end of the criminal enterprise. We disagree with that interpretation and conclude that <u>Puffinberaer</u> did not dictate such a result. Thus, while the trial court should have followed <u>Hankin</u> as the law was silent in the Fourth District, we now expressly declare that the trial court had the discretion to apply the guidelines in effect at that beginning of the enterprise.

<u>Gross</u>, supra.

<u>Gross</u> is *expressly* and *directly* in conflict with both the <u>Hankin</u> and the <u>Puffinberger</u> decisions from the Second District Court of Appeal and the Supreme Court of Florida respectively.

As indicated in Petitioner's brief on the merits filed in the district court and at the oral argument, failure to follow the <u>Hankin</u> interpretation of <u>Puffinberser</u> resulted in a significant increase in the sentence which Petitioner was exposed to and sentenced to. He has suffered real and substantial detrimental consequences based on the interpretation by the Fourth District Court of Appeal concerning the sentencing question at issue.

It is urged that the Court should exercise it's discretionary jurisdiction in this case in order to resolve the conflict amongst the district courts interpretation of a Florida Supreme Court decision. If this Honorable Court does not resolve this conflict in the interpretation <u>Puffinberger</u>, a state of confusion will continue to exist between the various districts concerning the sentencing question raised. This will result in unnecessary litigation and disparate sentences being imposed for the same criminal conduct depending solely upon where the crime occurred.

CONCLUSION

Based on the forgoing arguments and authorities, it is submitted that the this Honorable Court exercise their discretionary jurisdiction premised on Art. V, Section 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. and Fla. R. App. P.9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).