# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA CASE NO. SC02-1695 ORIGINAFILED

OCT 17 2002

RALPH GROSS,

Petitioner,

VS.

#### STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

#### RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

#### ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH

Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

# CELIA TERENZIO

BUREAU CHIEF, WEST PALM BEACH Florida Bar No. 656879

#### JAMES J. CARNEY

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 475246 1515 N. Flagler Dr. Ninth Floor West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 Telephone: (561) 837-5000 Facsimile (561) 837-5099

Counsel for Respondent

##

#### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the Appellant and Respondent was the Appellee in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. In this brief, the parties shall be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court of Appeal except that Appellee may also be referred to as the State.

All emphasis in this brief is supplied by Respondent unless otherwise indicated.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent does not accept Petitioner's statement of the case and facts as it improperly contains numerous alleged facts not found in the opinion. <u>See</u> Reaves w. State, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986) ("Conflict between decisions must be express and direct, <u>i.e.</u>, it must appear within the four corners of the majority's decision.").

Petitioner was convicted of RICO offenses which spanned pre and post-1994 guidelines. He filed a motion to correct illegal sentence claiming the for those crimes with a continuing date from 1993 through part of 1994, the guidelines in effect at the end of the criminal enterprise must be applied. The trial court disagreed. The Fourth District affirmed. <u>See</u> Gross v. *State*, 820 So. 2d 1043 (Fla. 4th DCA 2002)(copy attached).

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This Court should decline to accept jurisdiction to review this case because the opinion of the Fourth District Court of Appeal does not expressly and directly conflict with a decision of another district court of appeal or a decision of this Court.

#### ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE THIS CASE IS DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH A DECISION OF THIS COURT OR A DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL.

For two court decisions to be in express and direct conflict for the purpose of invoking this Court's discretionary jurisdiction under Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), the decisions should speak to the same point of law, in factual contexts of sufficient similarity to permit the inference that the result in each case would have been different had the deciding court employed the reasoning of the other court. See generally Mancini v. State, 312 So. 2d 732 (Fla. 1975) (emphasis supplied).

In <u>Jenkins v. State</u>, 385 So. 2d 1356, 1359 (Fla. 1980), this Court defined the limited parameters of its conflict review as follows:

This Court may only review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or the Supreme Court on the same question of law. The dictionary definition of the terms 'express' include: 'to represent in words'; to give expression to.' 'Expressly' is defined: 'in an express manner.' Webster's Third New International Dictionary (1961 ed. unabr.)

See generally Ansin v. Thurston, 101 So. 2d 808 (Fla. 1958);
Withlacoochee River Electric Co-op v. Tampa Electric Company, 158
So. 2d 136 (Fla. 1963), cert. denied, 377 U.S. 952, 84 S.Ct.
1628, 12 L.Ed.2d 497 (1964); and England and Williams, Florida

Appellate Reform One Year Later, 9 F.S.U. L. Rev. 221 (1981).

See also Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986)

("Conflictbetween decisions must be express and direct, i.e., it must appear within the four corners of the majority's decision.

Neither a dissenting opinion nor the record itself can be used to establish jurisdiction.") and Mystan Marine, Inc. v. Harrington, 339 So. 2d 200, 210 (Fla. 1976) (This Court's discretionary jurisdiction is directed to a concern with decisions as precedents, not adjudications of the rights of particular litigants).

Petitioner contends the decision of the Fourth District in this case expressly and directly conflicts with <u>Puffinberser v.</u>
State, 581 So. 2d 897 (Fla. 1991). Contrary to the suggestion in Petitioner's brief, Puffinberser v. State, 581 So. 2d 897 (Fla. 1991), does not stand for the proposition that the ending date of a continuing crime must be used in determining the applicable guidelines. <u>Puffinburser</u> simply held that it was not an <u>ex post</u> facto violation to use the ending date. It did not mandate that the ending date be used.

Similarly, contrary to the Fourth District's opinion in Gross, Hankin v. State, 682 So. 2d 602 (Fla. 2d DCA 1996), did not hold that a trial court must apply those guidelines in effect at the end of the criminal episode. In Hankin, the following occurred:

Appellant maintains that the aggravating circumstances in section 921.0016(3)(n), Florida Statutes (Supp.1994) (effective date: 1/1/94) are unconstitutionally vague, and the court should not have used them to depart from appellant's recommended guidelines range. The state responds that that statutory section does not apply to appellant's offenses because at the operative moment in time, when appellant began committing his offenses, the statute was not in effect. That argument is based on the fact that under section 921.001(4)(b)3, Florida Statutes (1995), felonies with continuing dates of enterprise are to be sentenced under the guidelines in effect on the beginning date of the criminal activity, which, in appellant's case, was December 1991 or April 1992. Appellant completed his offenses in 1994. However, this just-quoted statute, section 921.001 (4)(b) 3, did not take effect until 1995, with the result that case or statutory law in effect before the enactment of that section would apply. existing law was Puffinberger v. State, 581 So.2d 897 (Fla.1991), where the supreme court held that the law in effect at the end of the criminal enterprise applied. Accordingly, the 1994 sentencing guidelines would apply to appellant's departure sentence. As such, the court did not err in applying the section 921.0016(3)(n) aggravating circumstances to depart from the guidelines in sentencing appellant.

A close reading of the above indicates that the Second District was merely holding that under <u>Puffinburger</u>, the trial court did not err in applying the guidelines in effect at the end of the criminal episode. <u>Harkin</u> did not hold that the trial court was bound to apply those guidelines. It merely held the trial court did not err in doing so. There is no express and conflict.

Respondent also notes that this issue is not likely to recur. Since 1995, Florida Statutes provide that the guidelines in effect at the beginning of a continuing criminal enterprise are to **be** applied. See 921.001(4)(b)(3) Fla. Stat. (1995).

#### CONCLUSION

Wherefore, based on the foregoing arguments and the authorities cited therein, Respondent respectfully requests this Court to DECLINE to review the instant decision.